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Memorandum 

To: Rachel Reid, Marin County CDA 

From: Dan Sicular 

CC: Tammy Taylor, Sabrina Cardoza, Marin County CDA 

Date: July 30, 2023 

Subject: Response to Comments Received on the Brian Johnson Trust Coastal 
Permit Project Prior to the July 31, 2023 Planning Commission Hearing 

This memo includes brief responses to comments received on the Brian Trust Coastal Permit 
Project by CDA in the week prior to the July 31, 2023 Planning Commission hearing.  Responses are 
provided only for comments related to the CEQA analysis, and not for policy or merits issues. 
Overall, these comments raise no new substantive issues not previously addressed in the January 
2023 Supplemental Environmental Review (SER) or in the June 2023 Response to Comments (RTC) 
document. Comments do not provide substantial evidence to support a fair argument of a 
significant impact that cannot be mitigated.  

Comment letters were received from the following parties (letter designation sequence continued 
from the June 2023 RTC document): 

Letter 
Designation Author/Affiliation 
F Patricia K. Conway, Brekhus Law Partners, representing Marisa 

Atamian-Sarafian and Dr. Stephen Sarafian, Stinson Beach Residents 
G Jim Zell, Stinson Beach Resident 
H Jack Siedman, Attorney, representing Robert Friedman, Stinson 

Beach Resident 
I Elizabeth Brekhus, Brekhus Law Partners, representing Marisa 

Atamian-Sarafian and Dr. Stephen Sarafian, Stinson Beach Residents 
J Kent Nelson, Stinson Beach County Water District 
K Leonard Rifkin, representing Brian Johnson 
L Elizabeth Brekhus, Brekhus Law Partners, representing Marisa 

Atamian-Sarafian and Dr. Stephen Sarafian, Stinson Beach Residents 

The comment letters, with alpha-numeric coding of individual comments, are attached to this 
memo. 
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Responses to Comments 
 
Letter F: Patricia Conway 
 
F-1 This comment is a request for documents, and does not comment on the environmental 

review.  

F-2 This comment does not address the environmental analysis. Impacts related to the Project 
site’s location in a flood zone are addressed in Supplemental Environmental Review (SER) 
Section 2.10, Hydrology and Water Quality. See also the June 2023 Response to Comments 
(RTC) document, Master Response 1. 

F-3 Please see the response to comment F-2.  

 

Letter G: Jim Zell 

G-1 Impacts on dune habitat are addressed in SER Section 2.3, Biological Resources, and in the 
June 2023 RTC document, Master Response 2.  

 

Letter H: Jack Siedman 
 
H-1 The correspondence cited in this comment preceded the SER. The commenter did not 

submit comments on the SER. The commenter’s client’s view of the Project’s merits is not 
relevant to the environmental analysis. 

H-2 The Stinson Beach Adaptation Response Collaboration Sea Level Rise Vulnerability 
Assessment is being prepared by consulting firm ESA for the Marin County Community 
Development Agency (CDA). A draft report was released in April 2023 and was reviewed 
by the hydrologist who prepared the Hydrology and Water Quality section (Section 2.10) 
of the SER. The sea level rise predictions and community vulnerabilities identified in that 
report are consistent with those used in the analysis in the SER and further discussed in 
the June 2023 RTC document, Master Response 1 and response to comment C-20. No new 
information, including the information in this recent study, contradicts or calls into 
question the conclusion of less-than-significant impacts related to coastal flooding and sea 
level rise studies reached in the SER.  

H-3 The California Coastal Commission’s February 3, 2023 letter commenting on the SER was 
responded to in the June 2023 RTC document. Regarding the Commission’s comments on 
Easkoot Creek’s floodplain and the moratorium on building within the floodplain, please 
see response to comment A-14 in the June 2023 RTC document. 
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 While a portion of the Project site is located within the Easkoot Creek floodplain, it is over 
300 feet distant from the Easkoot Creek channel itself. There are at least four residences 
located along Calle del Onda between the Project site and the creek (see Figure 3 in 
Section 1, Project Description, in the SER). While Easkoot Creek contains sensitive riparian 
and aquatic habitat, the Project, given its distance, its small size, and its proposed controls 
on erosion and sedimentation during construction (see SER, Chapter 1, Project 
Description), would not have direct impacts on sensitive biological resources in and 
adjacent to the creek. SER Section 2.10, Hydrology and Water Quality, thoroughly analyzes 
the potential impacts of the Project related to both riverine and coastal flooding, and finds 
these to be less than significant. See also Master Response 1 in the June 2023 RTC 
document.  

H-4 Impacts and implications of the January 2023 atmospheric river storms are considered in 
Master Response 1 in the June 2023 RTC document. 

H-5 The potential for sea level rise to result in inadequate functioning of the proposed septic 
system is considered in the January 2023 SER, Section 2.10, Hydrology and Water Quality, 
as well as in Master Response 1 and the response to comment A-14 in the June 2023 RTC 
document. Impacts were found to be less than significant. 

H-6 The Project was the subject of the 2020 Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 
(IS/MND) prepared by the Stinson Beach County Water District, as well as the January 
2023 SER. Both studies found that all significant Project impacts can be mitigated to less 
than significant. A Mitigated Negative Declaration is therefore the appropriate path to 
CEQA compliance, and an EIR is not necessary. See Chapter 3, Summary and Conclusion, in 
the SER, and Chapter 5, Summary and Conclusion, in the June 2023 RTC document. 

H-7 This comment addresses the merits of the Project, not the environmental review. 

 

Letter I: Elizabeth Brekhus 

I-1 This comment requests a continuation of the Planning Commission hearing, and does not 
address specifics of the environmental review. 

 

Letter J: Kent Nelson, Stinson Beach County Water District 

J-1 The Stinson Beach County Water District (SBCWD) is the agency responsible for issuing 
the permit for an onsite wastewater treatment (i.e., septic) system for the Project. Should 
the applicant reapply for a permit, the SBCWD may choose to rely on the existing 
environmental documentation, including the 2020 IS/MND and the January 2023 SER, or 
may choose to prepare a new environmental document. Both the 2020 IS/MND and the 
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January 2023 SER examined impacts associated with the proposed septic system. The 
expiration of the permit has no bearing on the adequacy of the environmental documents. 
If a reapplication were to propose a substantially different onsite wastewater treatment 
system, additional environmental review could be required, as determined by the SBCWD 
or the County. 

 

Letter K: Leonard A. Rifkind 

K-1 This comment does not address the environmental analysis. 

K-2 This comment analyzes the issue of a constitutional “taking” should the Project be denied. 
It does not address the environmental analysis.  

 

Letter L: Elizabeth Brekhus 

L-1 The commenter submitted lengthy comments on the January 2023 SER (comment letter C 
in the June 2023 RTC document), all of which were responded to in the June 2023 RTC. 
This letter essentially repeats comments contained in comment letter C. 

L-2 The conclusion in the 2023 SER, reaffirmed in the June 2023 RTC document, that the 
Project, as mitigated, would not result in a significant impact on the environment is based 
on substantial evidence in the record cited and discussed for each impact conclusion. The 
expiration of the SBCWD Design Permit does not invalidate the environmental documents 
already prepared; see the response to comment J-1. The currently proposed 1,296 square 
foot residence, as well as the proposed septic system, were thoroughly analyzed in the 
January 2023 SER. Regarding the recent atmospheric river storms, please see Master 
Response 1 in the June 2023 RTC document. 

L-3 The issue of a constitutional taking, should the Project be denied, is not an environmental 
issue. 

L-4  The Project’s impacts on dune and sandy beach habitat are discussed in Section 2.3, 
Biological Resources, in the January 2023 SER and in Master Response 2 in the June 2023 
RTC document.  

L-5 The commenter raised similar points in their comment on the SER. Please see responses to 
comments C-14, C-15, and C-19 in the June 2023 RTC document. The impact conclusions 
regarding geologic hazards are not conclusory, and in fact are based on substantial 
evidence in the record, including a Geotechnical Feasibility Study prepared by a 
Geotechnical Engineer, and reviewed by the Certified Engineering Geologist who prepared 
the Geology and Soils analysis in the January 2023 SER. The commenter presents no 
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substantial evidence to support a fair argument of a significant impact related to geologic 
hazards. 

L-6 Please see Master Response 1 and the response to comment C-20 in the June 2023 RTC 
document. The comment provides no new or substantial evidence to support a fair 
argument that the Project would result in a significant impact related to sea level rise and 
coastal flooding. 

L-7 The SER identifies the location of the Project site within the AO and VE flood zones and 
thoroughly analyzes the potential for flood-related impacts in Section 2.10, Hydrology and 
Water Quality. See also Master Response 1 and response to comments C-20, C-22, and C-
23 in the June 2023 RTC document.  

L-8  Please see Master Response 1 in the June 2023 RTC document. That Master Response 
recounts the severe flooding, evacuations, and property damage that occurred in Stinson 
Beach during the January atmospheric river storms. That Master Response also provides 
evidence that the Project site itself was not inundated, and discusses the potential for the 
Project to exacerbate coastal and riverine flooding impacts on neighboring properties, 
finding that any such impact would be less than significant.  






































